_h_
HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Monday, 14 September 2009 6.30 p.m.
Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn

,,ﬂij:::i;> e > < /Z/

Chief Executive

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Paul Nolan (Chairman)

Councillor Dave Thompson (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Peter Blackmore

Councillor Sue Blackmore

Councillor John Bradshaw

Councillor Ron Hignett

Councillor Mike Hodgkinson

Councillor Dave Leadbetter

Councillor Keith Morley

Councillor Shaun Osborne
Councillor Rob Polhill

Please contact Michelle Simpson on 0303 333 4300 Ext. 1126 or
michelle.simpson@halton.gov.uk for further information.
The next meeting of the Committee is on Monday, 12 October 2009



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |
Item No. Page No.
1. MINUTES 1-7
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in
any item of business on the agenda, no later than when that
item is reached, and, with personal and prejudicial interests
(subject to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for

Members), to leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting
on the item.

3. PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE 8-55
COMMITTEE

4. ADJOINING AUTHORITY CONSULTATION 56 - 57

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 1

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

At a meeting of the Development Control Committee on Monday, 10 August 2009 in the
Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn

Present: Councillors Nolan (Chairman), Thompson (Vice-Chairman),
P. Blackmore, S. Blackmore, J. Bradshaw, Hignett, Hodgkinson, Leadbetter,
Morley, Osborne and Polhill

Apologies for Absence: None
Absence declared on Council business: None

Officers present: R. Cooper, A. Pannell, A. Plant, M. Simpson, J. Tully, P. Watts
and R. Wakefield.

Also in attendance: Ward Councillors Philbin, Edge and Jones plus 3 members
of the public.

ITEMS DEALT WITH
UNDER DUTIES
EXERCISABLE BY THE COMMITTEE

Action
DEV23 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 6 July 2009,
having been printed and circulated, were taken as read and
signed as a correct record.

DEV24 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
COMMITTEE

The Committee considered the following applications
for planning permission and, in accordance with its powers
and duties, made the decisions described below.

DEV25 09/00224/COU - CHANGE OF USE FROM EXISTING
GROUND FLOOR OFFICE TO 3 RESIDENTIAL CARE
BEDSITS AT 1 PEEL HOUSE LANE, WIDNES

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

It was reported that at the time of writing the report six
representations had been received from local residents




DEV26

Page 2

raising concerns which were outlined in the report for
Members consideration.

Ward Councillor Philbin addressed the Committee
and spoke against the application raising concerns as
outlined in the report and made reference to the possible
creation of nuisance and past history of police visits to
similar establishments.

In response the Planning Officer noted that the use of
the building would be Class C2 and the facility would have a
staff office, toilet facilities, and a lounge area. The building
would be staffed 24 hours per day. It was also reported that
no further objections had been received.

The Committee also made reference to the issues of
car parking. It was queried whether a response had been
received from the Police and Community Safety Team, in
response it was noted that they had not been consulted.
The Committee suggested that the application be deferred
until a view had been sought from the Community Safety
Team and the Police.

RESOLVED: That the application be deferred in order
to obtain a view from the Police and Community Safety
Team in terms of issues around anti-social behaviour and
disruption to the local community.

09/00244/FUL - PROPOSED THREE-STOREY
INNOVATION CENTRE (GROW ON BUILDING) WITH CAR
PARKING / MOTORCYCLE SHELTER AND EXTERNAL
LANDSCAPING TO THE LAND AT PLOT 1, DARESBURY
SCIENCE & INNOVATION CAMPUS, KECKWICK LANE,
DARESBURY.

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

It was reported that no objections had been received
but various agencies had suggested conditions as listed
below. Daresbury Parish Council had raised issues which
were outlined in the report for information. The report
detailed that the proposal was considered to offer a high
quality  development that was compatible and
complementary to its surroundings.

It was reported that the Highways Agency had made




Page 3

no objection to the proposal but has asked for details to be
forwarded to the applicant.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved
subject to conditions relating to the following:

1. Wheel cleansing facilities; (BE1)

2. Vehicle access, parking, servicing etc to be
constructed prior to occupation/ commencement
of use; (BE1)

3. Requiring implementation of Travel Plan; (TP16)
and

4. Restriction of the use (E5).

Additional conditions were agreed as follows:

5. Submission of details of the cycle store and
substation.

DEV27 09/00250/HBCFUL - PROPOSED REMEDIATION AND
RESTORATION OF GOLF COURSE (INCLUDING THE
DIVERSION OF STEWARD'S BROOK) AT ST MICHAELS
JUBILEE GOLF COURSE, DUNDALK ROAD, WIDNES.

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

The Committee was advised that since the report had
been written one further letter of objection had been
received details of which were outlined in the report. It was
reported that the Environment Agency had responded and
did not object subject to conditions.

The site was designated as a Special Site Under Part
lla of the Environment Protection Act 1990; the remedial
works were therefore regulated by the Environment Agency,
they had no specific conditions relating to contamination.

However, with regards to flood risk they had
recommended three further conditions relating to the
following:

e the development being carried out in accordance with the
flood risk assessment (June 2009),

¢ the submission of the final design details of the brook,

e and the submission of a landscape management plan




Page 4

relating to new planting, maintenance, new habitats, and
details of buffers.

It was also noted that should any waste materials be
imported and used in the restoration scheme appropriate
exemptions or authorisation from the Environment Agency
should be sought.

The Committee was advised that the removal of any
waste off the site shall be taken to an appropriate licensed
disposal site and any controlled waste should be removed
by a registered carrier.

The Committee was informed that United Ultilities raised
no objections.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to
the following conditions:

1. Standard time limits condition; (BE1)

2. Condition for details of all boundary treatments;
(BE22)

3. Condition for details of wheel cleansing facility to be
used during the course of construction; (BE1)

4. Condition for details of a scheme for dust
suppression; (PR1)

5. Condition(s) restricting hours of
construction/working/deliveries; (BE1)

6. Condition(s) for full landscaping scheme including
planting and final golf course design and
implementation; (BE1)

7. Condition(s) for the final design of the Steward’s
Brook diversion;

8. Conditions relating to location and heights of stock
piles; (BE1)

9. Condition relating to the submission of a validation
report upon the completion of the site remediation
works to ensure works have been carried out to
required specification; (S6 and PR14)

10.No trees shown to be retained shall be felled or
pruned without the Council's consent; (BE1)

11.No works shall be carried out within the designated
root protection areas without consultation with the
Council's Landscape Officer; (BE1)

12. Details planting scheme to be submitted; (BE1) and

13.Before site works commence, all trees shown to be
retained shall be protected by fencing in accordance
with British Standard 5837 (BE1)

The following additional conditions were also agreed.




Page 5

14.The development being carried out in accordance
with the flood risk assessment (June 2009);

15.the submission of the final design details of the brook;

16.the submission of a landscape management plan
relating to new planting, maintenance, new habitats
and details of buffers; and

17.the development to be carried out in accordance the
Flood Risk Assessment.

DEV28 09/00253/FUL - PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF NEW
TWO-STOREY CHURCH/MEETING HOUSE, RE-LAYING
OF CAR PARK, CAR PARK LIGHTING AND BOUNDARY
FENCES TO THE SITE OF FORMER CHURCH OF JESUS
CHRIST OF LATTER DAY SAINTS, CLIFTON ROAD,
RUNCORN.

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site. It was noted that two comments had been
received in support of the improvement and design of the
building.

It was reported that National Grid had indicated the
presence of one of their pipelines and their advice would be
forwarded to the applicant.

It was further noted that following further consultation
with the Health and Safety Executive had since confirmed
that they did not advise on safety grounds against the
granting of planning permission in this case.

The Committee was also informed that the car park
layout had been re-designed following comments received
from the Mersey Gateway Team, and there was an
additional condition to incorporate this. The Planning Officer
made reference to another condition in relation to the
provision of a travel plan.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved
subject to the following conditions:

1. Standard approval; (BE1)

2. Prior to commencement materials submission; (BE2)

3. Prior to commencement details of all boundary
treatments; (BE22)

4. Prior to commencement Green Travel Plan
submission; (TP16)




Page 6

5. Prior to commencement a detailed landscaping
scheme to be submitted; (BE1)

6. Prior to commencement details landscape specie
scheme to be submitted; (BE1)

7. Before site works commence, all trees shown to be
retained shall be protected by fencing in accordance
with British Standard 5837; (BE1)

8. No works shall be carried out within the designated
root protection areas without consultation with the
Council's Landscape Officer; (BE1)

9. Prior to commencement of Transport Assessment
details; ( TP14)

10.Prior to commencement details of wheel cleansing
facility to be used during the course of construction;
(BE1)

11.Restricted hours of construction; (BE1)

12.Landscaping implementation; (BE1)

13.No trees shown to be retained shall be felled or
pruned without the Council's consent; (BE1) and

14.Submission of any future lighting to be approved in
writing; (BE1)

Additional conditions were agreed as follows:

15.Submission of a travel plan; and
16.submission of a car parking plan.

DEV29 09/00276/FUL - ADJOINING AUTHORITY CONSULTATION
BY WARRINGTON BOROUGH COUNCIL REGARDING AN
OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR COMMUNITY SPORTS HUB
COMPRISING A RETAIL STORE, LEISURE CENTRE
(INCLUDING SWIMMING POOL), LIBRARY, CRECHE,
HEALTH CENTRE, SPORTS PITCHES, LOCAL PARK
ACCESS AND CAR PARKING TO THE LAND AT ORFORD
PARK, WINWICK ROAD, WARRINGTON.

The Committee considered a report for an adjoining
authority consultation by Warrington Borough Council on an
outline application.

It was reported that the proposed development was
located to the immediate north of Warrington Town Centre
and involved the development of a former landfill site, which
adjoined the Warrington Collegiate, William Beaumont
Community High School and the existing Orford Park.

The Committee was advised that the proposals
included provision for a 2322sgm. retail unit over 2 floors for
suggested sports retail use. The scheme would be primarily




Page 7

served via the A49 (Winwick Road) and Long Lane.

RESOLVED: That Warrington Borough Council is
informed that Halton Borough Council raises no objections.

DEV30 MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

It was reported that the following applications had
been withdrawn: -

09/00155/FUL Proposed first floor extension
above existing garage at 7
Lessingham Road Widnes.

09/00222/FUL Proposed extension of ground

floor kitchen and addition of first floor
bathroom at 189 Liverpool Road
Widnes.

Meeting ended at 6.58 p.m.



Page 8 Agenda ltem 3

REPORT TO: Development Control Committee
DATE: 14 September 2009
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director - Environment

SUBJECT: Planning Applications to be determined by the
Committee.

The following applications for planning permission are submitted to the
Committee for consideration with a recommendation in each case. Those
applications marked * are considered to have significant employment
implications.

An Amendments List, containing the categorisation of planning applications,
additional information and amendments to recommendations, will be
circulated to Committee Members before the meeting together with plans
showing the location of each application site. Those applications now before
the Committee, where the planning issues are considered clear by the
Chairman, will be included in List A. Unless a Member considers that
additional information is required on a particular application in List A it is
RECOMMENDED that each of the applications be determined (whether for
approval or for refusal) in accordance with the conditions or the reasons
printed in the Agenda and in the Amendments List previously circulated.

The remaining applications are included in List B. Together with those
applications about which Members require further information, List B
applications will be considered following determination of applications
remaining in List A.

APPLICATION DEFERRED FROM AUGUST COMMITTEE

PLAN NUMBER: 09/00224/COU

APPLICANT: Continuum Care and Education Group

PROPOSAL.: Change of use from existing ground floor office to
3 residential care bedsits at

ADDRESS OF SITE: 1 Peel House Lane, Widnes, WA8 6TN

WARD: Appleton

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION:



Page 9

Approve subject to conditions
CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION:

The application was advertised by way of a site notice displayed near to the
site and a press notice. The nearest affected occupiers of the adjacent
residential properties were notified by letter.

The Health and Safety Executive has been consulted, and does not advise
against the proposal. The Council’'s Highway Engineer and the Health and
Community Divisional Manager have also been consulted. No objections have
been raised.

At the time of writing the report six representations have been received from
local residents raising the following concerns; the applicant company do not
have a good reputation locally; the information provided in the application;
residents who would live in the property; work has begun on the site before
planning permission has been granted.

Since reporting the application to the August Development Control Committee
the Community Safety Team and the police have been consulted. Their
combined response has been provided by the Community Safety Supervisor,
who has the following comments to make:

1. Crime data Analysis

The Community Safety Supervisor has looked at the crime and disorder data
in Appleton ward and within the vicinity of the site. A lot of the anti social
behaviour incidents are likely to be attributed alcohol and the night time
economy due to proximity to the town centre. The data does not show any
significant problem within the vicinity of the application site.

2. Introduction

The Crime and Disorder Partnership recognises the benefits of such premises
to promote social cohesion. The proposed bedsits will offer 3 young people
and many more with an opportunity for them to build their aspirations and
careers whilst learning how to live independently with access to training
opportunities. We also have to acknowledge that these young people will not
have the benefit of transport so access to local services such as local shops,
church, takeaways, health services and computer technology is imperative.

On the other hand we accept the concerns of local residents and we also
accept that the residents may come to the attention of Cheshire Police or the
local community. We also accept that the Design and Access Statement does
not go into sufficient detail around the security, management and access
control of the building. Whilst this may not be a planning matter | think the
applicant may wish to provide some further detail so that local residents can
be reassured.



Page 10

3. Comments

These young people, who have probably come from a difficult up bringing
should be given every opportunity to be able to integrate into a successful
community. The crime data for the area of Peel House Lane does not indicate
a serious problem of Anti Social Behaviour (ASB), however Widnes
Neighbourhood Policing Unit will require the full support of the local
community to keep them fully informed of incidents and intelligence.

4. Recommendations

e CCTV plus signage to be provided along the public footpath. This will
help protect/secure the residents property, especially as their windows
abut a public footpath. It will also deter the residents from allowing
access to unscrupulous visitors outside of normal hours via their
bedroom windows or opportunities for drugs to be exchanged.

e CCTV and Access Control to be provided to the main communal door.

e Management Information to be available to concerned residents,
including details of staffing/visitor policy to be provided.

o Alleygate at rear to be closed and monitored.

e Local residents to be encouraged to set-up a Community Watch
scheme.

5. Conclusion

The question we need to ask is "Could we refuse this application and the
opportunity for young people to make something of their lives based upon
existing crime data and perceptions?"

In my opinion, the ASB data provided does not provide sufficient evidence to
refuse the application. Should the application be approved then Halton Safer
Halton Partnership (Cheshire Police) will monitor the ASB figures and respond
to them in accordance with our ASB enforcement strategy e.g Acceptable
Behaviour Contracts, Injunctions and ASBO's. Any crime related matters will
obviously be dealt with through Cheshire Police and the relevant
enforcement/custodial measures undertaken.

SITE/LOCATION

No; 1 Peel House Lane, Widnes, which has previously been, used as a
doctor’s surgery and more recently an office for Green Corns, a care provider,
now called Continuum.

RELEVANT HISTORY:



Page 11

Planning permission (02/00237/COU) granted for the change of use from a
doctor’s surgery to offices (B1) in 2002.

UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN DESIGNATION, KEY POLICIES AND
SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES:

The following Unitary Development Plan policies and policy documents are
relevant to this application: -

BE1 General Requirements for Development
BE2 Quality of Design

TP12 Car Parking

H8 - Primarily Residential Areas

OBSERVATIONS AND ISSUES:

Planning permission is sought for the change of use of the ground floor of an
existing office building to three residential care bed-sits (Use Class C2).

The building has previously been used as a doctor's surgery, and more
recently as an office building by Green Corns, a company which is now called
Continuum Care (the applicant).

The proposal is to convert the ground floor into 3 small self contained flats,
staff office and toilet facilities, and a communal lounge area. The first floor of
the building would be retained as office space for employees.

The Company would provide transitional accommodation for three care
leavers between the ages of 16 and 21, with care assistance provided by on-
site staff.

Policy

The property is located within an area designated as primarily residential in
the Halton Unitary Development Plan. Residential institutions are considered
to be acceptable in these areas. The proposal would not detract from the
character of the area or the amenity of local residents, and the development
would not result in an over concentration of non-dwelling uses in the area.

Amenity of local residents

Six representations have been received from local residents raising concerns
over the type of use and that the company does not have a good reputation
locally. Further concerns have been raised that the work has begun on the
site before planning permission has been granted. In response to this point it
should be noted that the proposal is for a change of use of the building,
currently no change of use has occurred in that no one is living there. All the
works that are being carried out are internal and do not require planning
permission, therefore this is out of planning control. The applicant is aware



Page 12

that Building Regulation approval is required and has submitted an application
to the Building Control Department.

Further comments have been received in relation to the level of information
provided in the application.

Highway safety

The Highways Department has not objected, as any parking needs can be
provided on street. Given the previous uses of the site and taking into
account the property is within close proximity to the town centre, it is
considered that off-street car parking is not required, and a refusal on these
grounds could not be upheld.

Crime and Disorder

The site is located within a primarily residential area and therefore in principle
is considered to be an acceptable use in this area. Further to this the
Planning Authority needs to give consideration to section 17 of the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998. The Community Safety Supervisor has been consulted,
and the anti-social behaviour (ASB) data for the area does not provide
sufficient evidence to refuse the application.

Should the application be approved then Halton Safer Halton Partnership
(Cheshire Police) will monitor the ASB figures and respond to them in
accordance with our ASB enforcement strategy e.g. Acceptable Behaviour
Contracts, Injunctions and ASBO's. Any crime related matters will be dealt
with by Cheshire Police and the relevant enforcement/custodial measures
undertaken.

It is also important to consider ‘Secure by Design’ and whether there are any
implications for this application. The Community Safety Supervisor has
recommended a condition for security measures including CCTV on the
building and entrance.

As for making management information available to concerned residents,
including details of staffing/visitor policy, the closure of the alley gate to the
rear and the setting up of a Community Watch scheme, these are considered
to be a matter of site management and would not be enforceable planning
conditions, and therefore are not recommended.

Conclusion

The proposed change of use from a ground floor office to three residential
care bedsits is considered to be an acceptable use in the primarily residential
area and complies with Policy H8 of the Unitary Development Plan. The
proposal would not be detrimental to the character of the area or the amenity
of local residents, and the development would not result in an over
concentration of non-dwelling uses in the area. The site is in close proximity



Page 13

to the town centre, and off-street car parking is not required, the proposal
complies with Polices BE1, BE2, and H8 of the UDP.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve, subject to the following conditions:
1) Standard time limits condition (BE1)

2) Condition for full details of bin storage (BE1)
3) Condition relating to security / CCTV

PLAN NUMBER: 09/00245/0UT
APPLICANT: Liverpool R.C. Archdiocesan Trustees Inc.
PROPOSAL: Outline application (with landscaping, appearance

and scale matters reserved) for proposed
residential development (up to 19 no. dwellings) at

ADDRESS OF SITE: Former Our Lady of Perpetual Succour R.C. Infant
School Avondale Drive, Widnes, Cheshire, WAS8
7XE.

WARD: Broadheath

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION:

Approve subject to conditions

CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION:

The application has been advertised by way of a site notice displayed near to
the site and a press notice. The nearest affected occupiers of the adjacent
residential properties were notified by letter.

United Utilities and Cheshire Fire & Rescue have been consulted. United
Utilities have no objection, Cheshire Fire and Rescue have no objection but
recommended that sprinkles be used in the houses as good practice.
Landscape Services and Council's Highway Engineer have also been
consulted. No objections have been raised.

At the time of writing the report nine representations had been received from
local residents raising the following concerns; the impact of proposed parking
area in the north west corner of the site, loss of privacy, the height of the
buildings, concerns that there may be a footway through to Marling Park, what
boundary fencing would replace the existing security fencing, could there be
an access onto Liverpool Road.

SITE/LOCATION



Page 14

The site is the former Our Ladies of Perpetual Succour Primary School, off
Avondale Drive, Widnes, Cheshire. The site was cleared following the
cessation of use, and now remains overgrown with vegetation. The existing
access to the site is off Avondale Drive.

RELEVANT HISTORY:
No relevant planning history

UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN DESIGNATION, KEY POLICIES AND
SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES:

The following Council’'s Unitary Development Plan policies and policy
documents are relevant to this application:-

BE1 General Requirements for Development

BE2 Quality of Design

BE22 Boundary Walls and Fences

H2 — Design and Density of New Residential Development

PR14 Contaminated Land

GEG6 — Protection of Designated Green Space

GE9 — Redevelopment and changes of uses

GE12 — Protection of Outdoor Playing Space for Formal Recreation
TP12 Car Parking

OBSERVATIONS AND ISSUES:

The Development

Outline planning permission is sought for the construction of 19 dwellings at
the former Our Ladies of Perpetual Succour Primary School, which has not
been used since the amalgamation of the infants and juniors at the Clincton
View site in 2001. The development would consist of 16 semi-detached
houses and 3 detached properties, with associated gardens, garages and
parking.

The Principle of the Development

The site is designated in the Halton Unitary Development Plan as protected
educational green space, therefore Policies GE6, GE9 and GE12 are relevant
to the proposal.

Our Lady of Perpetual Succour infant school closed down approximately eight
years ago in 2001 following a drop in pupil numbers and an amalgamation of
the infants and juniors to form Our Lady of Perpetual Succour Primary School
off Clincton View, Widnes.

The school playing fields have therefore not been used since then, and are in
an overgrown state. The buildings where demolished some time ago and the



Page 15

site is fenced off and secured. The site is not used by local residents for
recreation. Therefore, the redevelopment of the site would not cause a loss of
recreation to local residents by making them travel further to recreational
green space. In light of this the proposal is considered to comply with Policies
GE6, GE9 and GE12.

The development would constitute a density of 31 dwellings per hectare on a
site of 0.611 hectares. This complies with the Council’s UDP policy H2 which
requires densities between 30-50 dwellings per hectare.

Design and Appearance

The detailed appearance and scale of the houses are reserved matters and
will require approval before the development commences, though the
applicant has indicated that thirteen of the houses would be two-storey, six will
have dormer windows on the front elevations (2.5 storey). This would be to
provide a usable room in the roof space. The dwellings would be traditional
in appearance constructed in facing brick and tiled roofs, there would be a mix
of 3 and 4 bed properties.

The applicant has provided an indicative cross section of the site to
demonstrate the acceptability of 2.5 storey buildings, the ridge heights of
these would be approximately 9.5m high, and would not have dormer
windows that would overlook existing properties to the rear of Marling Park. A
condition is recommended to restrict dormer windows to the front elevation.

Highway safety

The proposal will require the widening of the existing access to meet
highways standards. The application seeks the approval of access, and
layout and the submitted amended plans show a widened access and new
road within the site. The highways engineer has been consulted and has no
objections to the plans.

Trees

A tree survey has been carried out for the site, this has identified a number of
trees to be removed including a large sycamore tree which is not protected.
The proposed layout allows for the retention of a small area for landscaping
and replacement planting. The Council’s Tree Officer has been consulted and
is satisfied with the submitted information. Conditions are recommended for
replacement planting and a landscaping scheme.

Amenity of Existing Residents

At the time of writing the report nine representations had been received from
local residents raising the following concerns; the impact of proposed parking
area in the north west corner of the site, loss of privacy, the height of the
buildings, concerns that there may be a footway through to Marling Park, what



Page 16

boundary fencing would replace the existing security fencing, could there be
an access onto Liverpool Road.

The plans have been amended reducing the scheme from 21 to 19 dwellings,
and removing the shared car parking area from the northwest corner of the
site. The amended layout plan now shows that two off-street car parking
spaces can be achieved for each dwelling by having their own garage or
driveway, without the need for shared parking areas.

With regards to privacy the proposed amended layout demonstrates that the
required interface distances can be achieved, an objection on loss of privacy
grounds can therefore not be upheld.

The proposal does not include vehicle or pedestrian access onto Marling Park
or on to Liverpool Road as neither of these are considered to be necessary.

With regards to boundary treatments this will be subject to a condition that
requires approval prior to commencement to ensure that it is acceptable in
scale and appearance, and suitable security. Furthermore a condition is
recommended for landscaping, including planting.

A further condition is recommend for a section 106 agreement for a financial
sum in lieu of open space provision.

Ground Conditions

The planning application has been accompanied by a ground investigation
report. The Environmental Health Department has been consulted, from the
findings they have recommended conditions for further assessment and
information to be supplied.

There is a main sewer across the site United Utilities have been consulted on
the amended plans and have no objection as there would be no
encroachment of buildings into the easement.

Conclusion

The principle of the development is considered to be acceptable. The site has
been left for many years and is no longer in educational use and does not
provide recreation for local residents. The proposed layout demonstrates that
19 dwellings can be accommodated, providing adequate garden spaces and
parking, and meets interface distances with existing properties. The proposed
access road is considered to the necessary standards. The proposal
complies with Policies BE1, BE2, H2, TP12, GE6, GE9 and GE12 of the
Halton Unitary Development Plan, and the New Residential Development
SPD.

RECOMMENDATION:



Approve

Page 17

Subject to the following conditions:

Standard time limits condition (BE1, BE2)

2) Amended plans condition

3) Standard reserved matter condition(s) for landscaping, appearance
and scale (BE1, BE2, H2).

4) Condition relating to the section 106 agreement for open space
provision/ improvement ,prior to the commencement of
development (S25)

5) Details of boundary fencing/treatment to be submitted for approval
before commencement. (BE22)

6) Condition relating to the approval of wheels wash facility details
prior to commencement (BE1, BE2).

7) Details of construction materials prior to the commencement of
development (BE2)

8) Condition(s) for details of hard and soft landscaping prior to the
commencement of development (BE1, BE2)

9) Condition relating to further investigation and mitigations of ground
conditions prior to commencement (PR14)

10) Condition for final site levels and floor levels prior to
commencement

11)  Condition(s) relating to full details and implementation of bin
provision prior to commencement

12)  Conditions relating to renewable, low carbon, decentralised energy
prior to commencement

13)  Condition(s) removing permitted development rights A, B and E
(BE1, BE2, H2)

14)  Condition(s) relation to access and highways being constructed to
highways authority standards

15)  Conditions relating to hours of construction and delivery (BE1, BE2)

16)  The provision of bins for each residential unit prior to occupation.
(Policy BE1)

PLAN NUMBER: 09/00269/FUL
APPLICANT: Mr K Dewsnap
PROPOSAL: Proposed two storey side extension and single

storey extension to front / rear at

ADDRESS OF SITE: 33 Hale Gate Road, Widnes

WARD:

Ditton

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION:

Approve subject to conditions



Page 18

CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION:

The application has been publicised by letter to nearby neighbours. The
Council’s Highway Engineer has been consulted and Halebank Parish Council
have also been notified.

One objection has been received from the adjoining neighbour at 35 Hale
Gate Road on the grounds that the proposed extension would cause loss of
light to their property.

Any further representations received will be reported orally to the Committee.
SITE/LOCATION:

The site is located within an established residential area, within the Ditton
ward of Widnes. The property is a semi-detached dwelling house and is one
of several semi-detached properties on Hale Gate Road. Many of the
surrounding properties have already been extended. The property has an
existing driveway to the side / front, and front and rear gardens. There is also
an existing detached garage within the site which is proposed to be
demolished.

RELEVANT HISTORY:
There is no planning history of relevance to the proposed development.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN  DESIGNATION, KEY POLICIES AND
SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES:

The following policies within the adopted Halton Unitary Development Plan
are of relevance to this application:

BE1 - General Requirements for Development
BE2 - Quality of Design
H6 - House Extensions

In addition, the Council’s Supplementary Planning Document — House
Extensions is of relevance.

OBSERVATIONS AND ISSUES:

Planning permission is sought for a proposed two storey side extension and
single storey extension to front / rear of the property. The side extension will
project 3.1m to the side of the property but it will be set off the boundary with
No. 35 by 150mm. The single storey rear extension will project 3 metres from
the rear elevation in line with the existing kitchen but set away from the
boundary with No. 35 by around 1.5 metres. A pitched roof is proposed
across the rear extension and existing kitchen extension. The proposed porch
and garage will project 1.2 metres from the main front elevation of the



Page 19

property. The existing detached garage within the rear garden is to be
demolished.

At ground floor the extension will include a garage, shower room, utility and
porch and at first floor an additional bedroom with ensuite to create a 3 bed

property.

The main issues and material planning considerations arising as a result of
the proposal relate to the design of the extension and the impact of the
extension on the amenity of neighbouring properties.

Design

The proposed extension has been appropriately designed to be in keeping
with the original dwelling house in terms of scale, proportions, materials and
appearance, and a condition has been recommended to ensure the materials
used in the proposed extension match those in the original building.

Although the proposed extension is proposed to be 150mm away from the
boundary with No. 35 and the side projection is marginally over half the width
of the original dwelling, the plans show the extension to be set back 1 metre
from the main front elevation of the property at first floor with a lower ridge
height than the existing roof. The proposed extension will therefore remain
subordinate to the original dwelling. In addition, as a result of this design, it is
considered that no terracing or unbalanced effect will occur and the proposal
will contribute positively to the street scene.

With regard to access from front to rear, although the plans do not allow for an
800mm gap to the side of the extension and the site boundary, the ground
floor layout has been designed so that there is unrestricted access from the
front of the property through the garage and out to the rear garden. This is
considered to be acceptable and will allow for the storage of bins and bicycles
to take place in the rear garden in order to retain the visual amenity of the
residential street. For these reasons, it is considered that this alternative
design should be viewed as an exception to the policy. It is also noted that
although applications 08/00203/FUL and 07/00275/FUL for domestic side
extensions were refused as they did not retain 800mm between the side of the
proposed extension and the plot boundary, these were lost at appeal. On this
basis, it is therefore considered that it would be difficult to defend a refusal of
the current application at appeal.

Amenity

One objection has been received from the neighbouring occupiers at No. 35
on the grounds that the proposed extension would cause loss of light to their

property.

The neighbouring property (No. 35) has a ground floor side kitchen window
and door, and a first floor side landing / stairs window which has obscured
glass. As these are not habitable rooms, it is considered that the proposed



Page 20

extension will have minimal impact on the amenity currently enjoyed by the
occupiers of No. 35. Furthermore, it is considered that a refusal on these
grounds would be difficult to defend at appeal. The requirement in the ‘House
Extensions’ SPD for rear extensions to not cross a 45 degree line taken from
the centre of any neighbouring rear habitable room windows is also satisfied.

In addition to this, it is also noted that between the edge of the proposed
extension and the side wall of the neighbouring property at No. 35, there is
shown to be a gap of 150mm, and a driveway at the neighbouring property.
This leaves an overall distance between the proposed development and side
elevation of the neighbouring dwelling house of approximately 3.2 metres.
This is considered to be acceptable and therefore minimises the impact of the
extension on the adjoining occupier further.

With regard to privacy, there are no side windows proposed within the
extension, and therefore there are no overlooking issues with the
neighbouring property at No. 35.

Conclusion

The proposed extension is considered to be acceptable and will have a
positive impact on the street scene. Although external access from front to
rear is not provided, the alternative design is considered to be acceptable and
should be viewed as an exception to the policy for the reasons given above.
Sufficient garden space has been retained to the rear and two off-road parking
spaces are provided within the site.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve subject to conditions relating to the following:

1. Standard condition relating to timescale and duration of the permission.
2. Materials to be used shall match those in the existing building.

PLAN NUMBER: 09/00270/FUL

APPLICANT: Mr N McGrath, Halton Housing Trust, Daresbury
Point, Manor Park, Green Wood Drive, Runcorn,
WA7 1UP

PROPOSAL: Proposed construction of a two storey block of 12

No. new build flats with 3 communal entrances, 6
No. new build bungalows in two terraces (including
1 No. disabled  bungalow), associated
groundworks, parking and stopping up of public
footpath at

ADDRESS OF SITE: Clarke Gardens, Widnes



Page 21

WARD: Riverside
SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION:

Approve subject to conditions
CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION:

The application was advertised in the local press and by a site notice
displayed near to the site. The nearest affected occupiers of the adjacent and
nearby residential properties were notified by letter. The Health & Safety
Executive, Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service, United Utilities, the
Environment Agency, the Council’'s Highway Engineers, Waste Officers,
Environmental Health Officers, Trees and Woodlands Officer, Ecologist and
Landscape Services have all been consulted.

Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service have no objection in principle but have
requested that a risk assessment is carried out to achieve an appropriate level
of fire safety.

The Environment Agency has raised no objection in principle, but has
recommended conditions relating to compliance with the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment and that details are submitted for the provision and
implementation of a surface water regulation system.

United Utilities raise no objection. The HSE does not advise, on safety
grounds, against the granting of planning permission.

The Council’s Ecologist is satisfied with the contents of the Ecological
Assessment. Ongoing negotiations are currently taking place with regard to
ground conditions on the site and Members will be updated on this at the
appropriate time.

No further comments have been received at the time this report was
produced, any further comments, will be reported orally to Committee.

SITE/LOCATION:

The site is located within an established residential area, and close to Widnes
Town Centre.

The site is currently a flat vacant piece of grass land, which is landscaped with
trees and bounded by railings of approximately 2 metres in height. The site
previously contained a sheltered housing complex arranged in three blocks,
each containing 8 flats, with separate community block and warden
accommodation. This was demolished in 2006 and the land has remained
open since. Surrounding the site there are residential properties which are
mixed in size and design.



Page 22

RELEVANT HISTORY:

The most recent application of relevance on the site was 06/00446/DEM for
the proposed demolition of existing sheltered housing complex comprising 3
No. blocks (each containing 8 No. flats) / separate community block / warden
accommodation and associated bin stores / low level boundary walling. The
site is now clear and is fenced off to prevent intruders.

DEVELOPMENT  PLAN  DESIGNATION, KEY POLICIES AND
SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES:

The following policies within the adopted Halton Unitary Development Plan
are of relevance to this application:

BE1 General Requirements for Development

BE2 Quality of Design

BE3 Environmental Priority Areas

BE22 Boundary Walls and Fences

H2  Design and Density of New Residential Development
H3  Provision of Recreational Greenspace

PR14 Contaminated Land

PR16 Development and Flood Risk

TP1 Public Transport Provision as Part of New Development
TP6 Cycle Provision as Part of New Development

TP7 Pedestrian Provision as Part of New Development
TP12 Car Parking

TP15 Accessibility for New Development

TP17 Safe Travel for All

In addition the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance / Documents —
New Residential Development and Designing for Community Safety are also
relevant to this application.

OBSERVATIONS AND ISSUES:

Full planning permission is sought for the proposed construction of a two
storey block of 12 No. new build flats with 3 communal entrances, 6 No. new
build bungalows in two terraces (including 1 No. disabled bungalow),
associated groundworks, parking and stopping up of public footpath.

The proposed development will provide rented accommodation with Halton
Housing Trust acting as landlord. The core tenant group of the
accommodation has been identified as the over 55’s. The supporting
information confirms there is currently a large amount of existing HHT tenants
awaiting alternative accommodation.  The proposed development will
therefore, provide suitable housing to help to meet this strong demand.

The main issues and material planning considerations arising as a result of
the proposal are: -
e Design and Layout suitability



Page 23

Amenity Space
Highways

Trees and Landscaping
Decentralised Energy

Design and Layout Suitability

The proposed development will result in a housing density of 44 dwellings per
hectare. This falls within the 30-50 density target as encouraged in Policy H2
of the UDP. The proposed density is within the upper end of the target
density, which is considered to be appropriate given the site is located close
to the town centre.

The scheme will be pivoted around a central garden area. The 12 apartments
will be positioned over two storeys and in the main, will front onto Lacey Street
which is to the south of the site. The 6 bungalows will be positioned to the
north of the apartments with 3 facing Charlotte Walk and 3 facing Elizabeth
Court.

Internal habitable living space within the proposed development will be
alternated into and out of the site, giving a good level of natural surveillance.
Where habitable rooms do not face into the site, the less overlooked areas are
shown to be gated to prevent intruders and will therefore maintain a good feel
of security and safety.

Interface distances have been maintained to the Council’s minimum standards
within the site and with the existing properties outside the site. This provides
a good degree of privacy both within and out of the site.

Materials have been shown to include a mix of cream render, grey Marley
slate, red brickwork and natural stained Larch timber cladding. These will
create a unique development in its setting, and are considered to create an
appropriate high quality design. Samples of materials have been requested
for approval by condition.

The majority of the site will remain open plan with the existing development
surrounding the site. However, 900mm high timber fencing to the south of the
site around the parking area and a mix of 2.1 metres high brick walls and
fences are proposed within the site for security and privacy. These are
considered to be appropriately sited and at suitable heights.

Amenity Space

A central garden area provides amenity space for future occupiers of the
proposed apartments within the scheme. This will be private and gated to
prevent trespassers. Private ‘Juliette’ balconies are also shown on the
southern elevation of the apartment block, which are considered to be
appropriately sited within the development.



Page 24

Although some of the garden sizes for the proposed bungalows fall short of
the minimum standards required for new residential development, in order to
prevent over development of the plots and to safeguard residential amenity,
permitted development rights have been restricted. This is considered to be
satisfactory. In addition, occupiers of the bungalows and flats have access to
public open space at St Marie’s Park, which is within close proximity to the
site.

Highways

The Highways Engineer has no objection to the proposed development in
principle. A new cul-de-sac is proposed into the site from the north with
access directly from the existing turning head within Elizabeth Court. The cul-
de-sac will be gated for the future residents of Clarke Gardens and will
provide access into the centre of the site.

The plans show the creation of 18 parking spaces and 16 cycle parking
spaces within the site. Parking for the apartments is shown to be both off
Lacey Street itself and also via a separate car parking area within the south
eastern corner of the site. Parking for the bungalows is shown to be located
centrally within the site and will be accessed from Elizabeth Court and gated
for security. The disabled bungalow has 2 parking spaces located on a
private driveway. Although the overall parking numbers fall short of the
minimum required for the number of dwellings proposed, this is considered to
be acceptable given that the site is located close to Widnes Town Centre
which is therefore highly accessible by means of sustainable transport. The
site location therefore easily and well connected to public transport and
community facilities, jobs, key services and infrastructure as encouraged in
PPS3. The Highways Engineer is satisfied with the parking numbers, types
and locations shown.

An existing footpath which connects Lacey Street with Elizabeth Court, is
proposed to be closed as part of the development. A stopping up application
is currently being processed. As pedestrian access will still be provided
around the site via Charlotte Walk, closure of this footpath is considered to be
acceptable.

Bin stores are located sporadically within the site for inclusive use. Highways
have requested that refuse collections are managed so that bins are brought
to appropriate locations for collection.

With regard to fire access, the Fire Officer has provided comments as above,
however details of fire access will also be addressed within the application for
Building Regulation approval.

Highways have also requested that dropped crossings with tactile paving are
installed at all appropriate desire line points. This has been addressed via
planning condition.

Trees and Landscaping




Page 25

The scheme will involve the removal of certain trees on the site but also
replacement planting. The Council’s Trees and Woodlands Officer has no
objections in principle to the proposed works, but has suggested conditions
relating to the submission of an arboricultural method statement, the
protection of trees to be retained, and the submission of a planting plan for
approval.

The Council’'s Landscape Officer has no objection to the landscaping
proposals.

Decentralised Energy

As the developer is a Registered Social Landlord, a commitment to achieving
Code Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes is required. In addition, the
applicant has suggested installing heat recovery technology within the
proposed development to reduce energy consumption. As a result, this is
considered to be acceptable and will contribute to the provisions required in
Policy EM18 of the Regional Spatial Strategy.

Conclusion

The proposed use is considered to be acceptable given the land allocation as
‘Primarily Residential’ and will provide accommodation which is of high quality
design for those unable to afford market housing.

It is considered that all substantive matters have been adequately addressed
and that all other outstanding matters can be adequately controlled by
condition. On this basis, the application is recommended for approval.
RECOMMENDATION:

Approve subject to conditions relating to the following:

1 Standard condition timescales for development commencement.
2 Prior to commencement approval of materials (Policy BE2).
3 Prior to commencement of development, a scheme for the provision

and implementation of a surface water regulation system to be
submitted for approval. (Policy PR16)

4 Details relating to off-site highway works involving dropped
crossings and tactile paving to be submitted and approved. (Policy
TP7)

5 Before site works commence protective fencing to be erected to
protect trees to be retained. (Policy BE1)

6 Prior to commencement an arboricultural method statement to be
submitted and approved. (Policy BE1)

7 Prior to commencement wheel washing details to be submitted and
approved. (Policy BE1)

8 Submission and agreement of finished floor and site levels prior to

commencement (Policy BE1).



Page 26

9 Vehicle access, parking, servicing etc to be constructed prior to
occupation of properties / commencement of use (Policy BE1).

10 Development should be carried out in accordance with the
approved Flood Risk Assessment and identified mitigation
measures. (Policy PR16)

11 There shall be no ground disturbance close to the trees to be
retained. (Policy BE1)

12 Planting plan shall be implemented as soon as practical after
completion of the development. (Policy BE1)

13 Restricted hours of construction (Policy BE1)

14 Restricted hours of delivery (Policy BE1)

15 The provision of bins and management of collections for each
residential unit prior to occupation. (Policy BE1)

16 Withdrawal of Permitted Development Rights for extensions and
fences.

17 No trees shown to be retained shall be damaged in any way as a
result of the development (Policy BE1)

PLAN NUMBER: 09/00340/HBCCOU, 09/00341/HBCLBC and
09/00342/HBCCAC

APPLICANT: Halton Borough Council

PROPOSAL.: Proposed change of use of former Kingsway
Health Centre to a youth centre, rear extension
with glazed link connection, associated parking,
gardens, courtyard, ball court, demolition and
rebuilding of part of boundary wall/railings, partial
demolition of south boundary wall and replacement
with railings and ancillary works.

ADDRESS OF SITE: Kingsway Health Centre, Kingsway, Widnes.

WARD: Kingsway

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION:

Approve subject to conditions

CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION:

Surrounding properties have been notified and the application advertised by
way of site and press notices. English Heritage, the Council’s retained
Conservation Advisor, The Twentieth Century Society, The Victorian Society
and United Utilities have been consulted as have the Council’s Highways and
Tree Officers.



Page 27

The scheme has been designed in consultation with focus groups for each
target group including disabled users and those from deprived backgrounds.
This is referred to as the Youth Design Team who have played an active role
in the design of the centre, the proposed activities and services, delivery and
future governance arrangements.

SITE/LOCATION:

Kingsway Health Centre is a listed building (Grade 2) fronting Kingsway,
Widnes. Vehicle access is from the side of the building onto Vicarage Road

RELEVANT HISTORY:

None directly relevant. The building was however recently listed by English
Heritage (Grade 2).

UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN DESIGNATION, KEY POLICIES AND
SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES:

The site is within Action Area 2 Central Widnes and also lies within the
Victoria Square Conservation Area. The following Council’s Unitary
Development Plan policies are relevant to this application:-

RG2: Action Area 2 Central Widnes,

BE12: General Development Criteria Conservation Areas,

BES8: Changes of Use of Listed Buildings,

BE9: Alterations and Additions to Listed Buildings,

BE10: Protecting the Setting of Listed Building,

BE19: Disabled Access for Changes of Use, Alterations and Extensions
GE27: Protection of Trees and Woodlands.

OBSERVATIONS AND ISSUES

Scheme Proposal and Historical Context

The proposal is for the change of use of the former Kingsway Health Centre to
a youth centre including a two-storey extension to the rear of the retained
building with glazed link connection, associated parking, gardens, ball court
and demolition and re-building of boundary walls with railings.

According to the listing description, the former Kingsway Health Centre was
opened in 1939 to address the issue of inadequate and scattered healthcare
facilities in Widnes. It was built just before the outbreak of World War two and
is a rare example of a 1930s comprehensive health centre outside of London.
The building design is in the Modern style and incorporates well preserved Art
Deco elements both externally and internally.

Policy Considerations and Development Principles




Page 28

The site is within the Central Widnes Action Area which is identified within the
Halton Unitary Development Plan as a proposed “mixed-use area for uses
supporting and enhancing the vitality and viability of the Widnes Town
Centre”. Within the policy, use as ‘assembly and leisure’ is specifically
identified as acceptable. The plan proposes the transformation of this listed
building by restoring and retaining as far as possible key original features and
by the addition of a modern extension to the rear.

The former Kingsway Health Centre has remained vacant since January 2006
and was last used to provide health care for the people of Widnes. Securing a
use for this building is widely accepted as the most effective way of securing
the long-term future of such buildings. When measured against the provisions
of UDP Policies and the wider aspirations of the Central Widnes Action Area,
it is considered that the proposed uses are acceptable in principle. The
principle of the modern design as an obvious addition to such historical
buildings is also accepted in line with current conservation principles and has
previously been used in the recent modernisation of the Runcorn Town Hall
annexe building and the ongoing extension and conversion of the former
Widnes Town Hall to provide a hotel, bars and restaurants.

Specific Design Issues

The proposals will retain the main original building of the former health centre
with limited demolition of a single storey outrigger to the rear to make way for
the glazed link and the proposed extension. The existing building will be
refurbished including the glazing which is a prominent feature of the building.
Internally it is necessary to knock through a number of rooms which are
relatively small to provide more functional spaces but retaining, as far as
possible, coved ceilings, original tiling and stub walls to provide reference to
the original form of the building. The central area of 3 existing three-quarter
height windows to the rear elevation will be opened up with full height modern
folding doors providing access to a rear courtyard space.

A key issue has been the issue of securing disabled access throughout the
building and the impact of this particularly on the retention of original
doorways with feature architraves particularly within the original central
ground floor waiting room. These are seen as important features in terms of
character but are not currently capable of providing disabled wheelchair
access. Following detailed discussions, including the Council’s retained
advisor and English Heritage, a scheme has been agreed to retain existing
where possible, block redundant doorways but retain the architrave detailing
and where necessary provide new openings with modern architrave detailing
to be agreed, thereby allowing suitable disabled access to be achieved. These
elements of the proposal are therefore considered acceptable when balancing
the need to secure a viable future for the building whilst meeting modern
standards and expectation.

The scheme also proposes a modern 2 storey height building to the rear
connected to the main building by glazed link. The principle of obvious
modern additions to such buildings has been previously accepted at Runcorn



Page 29

Town Hall and the former Widnes Town Hall and is in line with current
guidance and thinking on such projects. The proposed extension will provide a
full height multi-functional hall for a wide variety of activities including, sports,
theatre, music etc. The proposed hall will be clad in standing seam zinc
cladding or similar with curtain wall glazing overlooking the proposed
courtyard with horizontal brise soleil. A contrasting feature element fronting
Vicarage Road will provide “chill out” space and youth parliament
accommodation projecting over the rear entrance and finished in pre-
pattinated copper cladding with glazed elevations facing the courtyard and the
adjoining spire at St Pauls Church. The remainder of the proposed extension
providing circulatory space, control rooms, changing facilities etc is to be clad
in opaque channel glazing or similar. The proposal is also designed to offer
particular gains in terms of energy efficiency including passive ventilation
using wind catchers to the roof and an air source heat pump.

The two elements will be joined by external courtyard with seating, pergola etc
to allow the uses of both buildings to link through the outside space. Other
facilities will include a multi-use games area to one side and landscaped
gardens to front and side. The proposals are considered to offer a very high
quality of design and materials providing a flagship development in its own
right yet sympathetic and relating well to the original building and its listed
status.

Highways and Parking

The scheme will retain its primary pedestrian entrance direct on to Kingsway.
Vehicle access will be provided into the rear yard area as existing via the
existing highway network. The proposed extension will result in the loss of a
significant proportion of the parking available to the former health centre.
Limited parking will be retained for 3 parking spaces to the rear including one
disabled parking space. The proposed is considered as an acceptable use for
the location, accessible by pedestrians and well served by public transport.
The parking and highway demand for the use has been assessed by the
Council’'s Highways Engineers based on the predominantly young people who
will use the centre, the current travel patterns of staff to be relocated and the
potential for shared parking surrounding the site. Whilst further justification
has been requested to support the case the Council’s Highways Engineer has
confirmed that they raise no objections in principle.

Loss of Trees

The scheme will result in the loss of a number of trees which currently
surround the boundaries of the site. These are predominantly poplars many of
which have been heavily pruned/ pollarded. They are thought to be partly
responsible for the damage to the existing walls and railings (which are to be
rebuilt and restored) and are considered to block key views of the building. As
such the current trees are not considered of particular merit and are
considered unsuitable for their location. It is therefore proposed to remove the
existing trees and to provide replacement planting of more appropriate



Page 30

species along the frontage subject to agreement by condition. The Council’s
Tree Officer has agreed this course of action as most appropriate.

Noise

The scheme proposes a youth centre with multiuse hall and external courtyard
which will provide potential venues for theatre, music, sports etc and therefore
the potential to raise noise issues. The application is therefore supported by a
noise assessment which provides recommendations in terms of hours of use
and acoustic insulation to the buildings and plant. A degree of screening is
provided naturally to the proposed court yard being surrounded on three sides
by buildings up to 2 storeys and mature green screen to the remaining side.
The Council’s Environmental Health officer has confirmed that no objections
are raised in principle but discussions are ongoing with regards to the details
of the attenuation and mitigation required. Members will be updated as
required.

Summary and Conclusions

The current proposals represent a bold scheme and the proposals for such
modern additions to such a prominent historical building could divide opinion.
It is however considered that to produce a pastiche of the original building
would represent a missed opportunity and conflict with current conservation
principles. The proposed uses are considered to be appropriate for the
building and in accordance with the Unitary Development Plan. It is
considered that a good balance has been achieved between the retention of
key elements of the main building and modernisation to meet current
standards and expectations to secure a viable future. The proposals have
resulted from lengthy consultation with the future users of the centre, the
Council’s retained advisor and English Heritage. The application(s) are
therefore recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION:

Application 09/00340/HBCCOU - Approve subject to conditions relating to the
following:

—

. Specifying amended plans (BE1)

2. Materials condition, requiring the submission and approval of the
materials to be used (BE2)

3. Requiring that the scheme be implemented in full accordance with the

approved plans/ details unless otherwise agreed. (BE1)

Specifying the use as a Youth Centre within use class D2 (BE1).

Boundary treatments to be submitted and approved in writing. (BE2)

Wheel cleansing facilities to be submitted to and approved in writing

and used during construction. (BE1)

7. Submission and agreement of landscaping details including

replacement tree planting (BE1)

o oA



Page 31

8. Construction and delivery hours to be adhered to throughout the course

of the development. (BE1)

9. Restriction of opening hours (BE1)
10. Vehicle access, parking, servicing etc to be constructed prior to

occupation/ commencement of use. (BE1)

11.Agreement and implementation of cycle parking provision (TP6)
12. Restricting external lighting (BE1)
13. Site investigation, including mitigation to be submitted and approved in

writing. (PR14)

14.Requiring additional details relating to associated plant/ noise

attenuation (PR2)

15. Requiring submission and agreement of additional details relating to

brise soleil, glazed roof, pergola, bin stores etc. (BE2)

Application 09/00341/HBCLBC - Approve subject to conditions relating to the
following:

That Authority is delegated to the Operational Director — Environmental and
Regulatory Services to approve the application subject to the Secretary of
State not calling the application in and to conditions relating to the following:

1.
2.

3.

4.

Specifying amended plans (BE9)

Materials condition, requiring the submission and approval of the
materials to be used (BE9)

Requiring that the scheme be implemented in full accordance with the
approved plans/ details unless otherwise agreed. (BE9)

Requiring submission and agreement of additional details relating to
detailed features including door architraves, hand rail, glazed roof,
brise soleil, pergola etc (BE9)

Application 09/00342/HBCCAC — Approve subject to conditions relating to the
following:

1.

2.

Requiring submission and agreement of method statement for
demolition, rebuilding and refurbishment (BES)

Requiring that the demolition, rebuilding, refurbishment be
implemented in full accordance with the approved plans/ details unless
otherwise agreed. (BES8)

Materials condition, requiring the submission and approval of the
materials to be used (BES8)



Page 32

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE
AMENDMENTS/REVISION LIST

14" September 2009
PAGE LIST A LIST B AMENDMENTS
NO.
8 09/00224/COU Further comments

have been received
from the local Police
Inspector. The police
inspector has
commented on an
existing establishment
within the vicinity of
the site. This
establishment provide
homes for children
from disadvantaged
background, broken
homes and some
have behavioural
problems, this relates
to them committing
crimes from theft to
anti-social behaviour,
which has a large
impact on police
resources.

Whilst Widnes
Neighbourhood
Policing Team fully
understand the
requirement to house
and support these
children and develop
their social skills to
help them back into
the community, there
has to be a limitation
on the amount of
children taken into
one particular area. If
this Application was
agreed for a further
three homes for care
leavers between 16
and 21 to be placed




Page 33

into this area it would
increase demand from
the police to deal with
issues relating to
these young persons.

It is also noted that
often these children
come from outside the
borough, and try to
return to the place of
origin, or bring with
them criminal skills.

It is noted that if the
application is
approved then
Widnes
Neighbourhood
Policing Team will
deal with the issues
that arise from the
tenants, and whilst the
inspector does not
oppose the
application, the above
information should be
taken into
consideration.

Secondly, with
regards to the lack of
provision of private
amenity space, the
site is located within a
town centre location,
such areas are
characterised by high
density properties,
with little or no private
amenity space.
Furthermore there is
no specific policy or
standards for the
provision of private
amenity space for
such establishments
(C2 use). Taking this
into consideration this
lack of private amenity




Page 34

space could not be
upheld as a reason for
refusal.

13

09/00245/0UT

One further
representation has
been received from
the resident of 57
Avondale Drive
relating to the
proposed landscaping
to the rear of their
property, kids
potentially climbing
trees and leafs falling
into their property. A
condition has been
recommended to for
the approval of full
details of landscaping,
this will include
planting details to
ensure appropriate
planting.

17

09/00269/FUL

20

09/00270/FUL

Amended plans have
been received
showing ground and
first floor gable end
windows for each end
of the apartment
block. These were
originally omitted from
the elevations, but
have always been
shown on the
proposed layout plan.
As such no neighbour
re-consultation is felt
to be necessary and
no significant
overlooking issues
occur.

Comments have been
received from
Environmental Health




Page 35

with regard to ground
conditions. A condition
has been requested that
no part of the
development shall
commence until a
remediation plan,
including suitable
monitoring and
verification
methodologies, should
also be agreed in writing
with the Planning
Authority. A completion
statement shall be
issued upon completion
of the remediation
programme. (Policy
PR14).

26

09/00340/HBCCOU,
09/00341/HBCLBC
and
09/00342/HBCCAC

Item 5 Adjoining Authority Consultation

PLAN NUMBER: 09/00357/ADJ




Page 36

)r\ PLAN 5e
—~——\"——  PLAN NUMBER 09/00340/HBCCOU
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 14 September 2009




Page 37

)r\ PLAN 1a
—~——\——  PLAN NUMBER 09/00224/COU
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 14 September 2009

~
~

/
~Scale 1:500-~. 7 A
\\\ \\\\_’// l/
©C N COPYRIGHT RESERVED //
N \\\ e ;
’\(\/ \ / RN




Page 38

)(\\— PLAN 1b

PLAN NUMBER 09/00224/COU

HALTON Layout pLAN

BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 14th September 2009
COMMITTEE

@@5ﬁmﬁ?£Kpu

After Conversion

wm | | Lﬁjf

g
=
8

Dz)@ P=miz 2
;-m@(jm@ p

" Public|Foot Path




Page 39

)r\ PLAN 1c
—~——\——  PLAN NUMBER 09/00224/COU
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 14 September 2009




Page 40

)r\ PLAN 2a
—~~——\——  PLAN NUMBER 09/00245/0UT
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 14 September 2009
M
e b

Allotment

Track

Allotment Gardens

Allotment Gardens

P

Community
Centfre

ROAD
e ———

WILSDEN

,r

] Clinic
|

|

|

|

\

—_
—
— e

=

[




Page 41

{\ PLAN 2b
——~—=X"— PLAN NUMBER 09/00245/0UT

HALTON Layout pLAN

BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 14th September 2009
COMMITTEE

09002450UT

Amended

Oom 10m 20m
% g I 00 ol 5
pos Scale Bar 1:500
PO — A N
ab —
ree references are taken
from the survey schedule
produced by Cheshire
‘Woodlands.
i
;
= W/
\ I 13 / /
[
§ = / / S H 1 /1/ SCHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION:
) / \ I3 - |
f s -~ /
\ g /' HOUSE TYPE _ STOREY QUANTITY TOTAL SQ. FT
\ 2
\ CeReed foof A 3w7s 2 8 6200
| ‘73‘ 5 7 I3 8 3h840 2 3 2520
— b — C  3h8so 2 1 880
i E D 3/4h950 25 6 5700
/ T E 3h900 2 1 900
il feil extg. fr
- e s TOTAL 19 16200
{ 3
‘ ol SITE AREA = 0.611Ha (1.51 acres)
10715 sq ft/ acre
31.1 plots/Ha (12.6 plots / acre)
A : Layout altered following meeting with the Planning Officer.
Schedule adjusted accordingly. asl 29/07/09
B : House type E introduced on plot 7 to achieve 13m stand
off ; replacement trees indicated. asl 17/08/09
[ e
| cuenr
|_Liverpoot R.C. Truste
[Prokcr
\ { i the former
existing 525mm dia. sewer with | OurLady of Perpetual Succour RC Infants School
& 4 seserment ook s g | off Avondale Drive, Widnes, WAB TXF
[omwmcmz
| Proposed Site Plan
o |
’:3/05/09 B




Page 42

){\\— PLAN 2c

PLAN NUMBER 09/00245/0UT

HALTON proPOSED ELEVATIONS

BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 14th September 2009
COMMITTEE

‘g’]

J

09/00245)0T

iy

upsy
o
B

20>

26 marling park 12
section A-A




Page 43

)r\ PLAN 2d
—~——\——  PLAN NUMBER 09/00245/0UT
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 14 September 2009




Page 44

)r\ PLAN 3a
—~~——\"——  PLAN NUMBER 09/00269/FUL
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 14 September 2009

© CROWN COPYRIGHT RESERVED




Page 45

)f\\— PLAN 3b

PLAN NUMBER 09/00269/FUL

HALTON Layout pLAN

BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 14th September 2009
COMMITTEE




Page 46

)r\ PLAN 3c
—~——\——  PLAN NUMBER 09/00269/FUL
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 14 September 2009




Page 47

}\\_ PLAN 4a
HALTON

PLAN NUMBER 09/00270/FUL
BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

14 September 2009

oY) HOLYW

-

133415 S5




Page 48

r\ PLAN 4b
——~—="— pPLAN NUMBER 09/00270/FUL

HALTON Layout pLAN

BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 14th September 2009
COMMITTEE

H ot

. r
\
1

o 23 i vl

e 2o e
——— e

= oo i vt o
[ ——
e i e s i

20500 it sttt Dk
e P i

e 1 e e e T 1

N8, Alf imensions are.
‘accurate to within 100mm

ot
Tis map s based upon Ordanance Suvey malesal Wit the.
fason of Orénoncs Susvey on behall o the controter of

Py

o7 s ey
i e 5 G oy P Aowes S oesrrs | " MPieroncen




Page 49

{\ PLAN 4c

PLAN NUMBER 09/00270/FUL
HALTON proPOSED ELEVATIONS
BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
COMMITTEE

14th September 2009

(0S00270FUL |

Front Elevation
Scale 1:100

Rear Elevation
Scale 1:100

Front Eevation
Scale 1:100

First Floor Angular Apartments Plan
Clarke Gardens,

Floor Area = 65.23m*
Total Floor Area= 259.84m*

First Floor Angular Apartments Plan
Clarke Gardens,

Floor Area = 64.69m*
Total Floor Area= 259.84m*

und Floor Angutar Apartments Plan Ground Floor Angular Apartments Plan
Clarke Gardens, Clarke Gardens,
Floor Area = 65.23m? Floor Area = §4.69m?
Total Floor Area= 259.84m* Total Floor Area= 259.84m*
e




Page 50

(\ PLAN 4d
— —_ X\ PLAN NUMBER 09/00270/FUL

HALTON proPOSED ELEVATIONS

BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 14th September 2009
COMMITTEE

(CEoo=Fo2 i)

‘Timber pergola structurs with
dlear polycarbonate sheet roof

800

Bungalow 4B5P

Footprint 179.5sqm
internal  161.2sqm

. |
iy
i {

[ e—




Page 51

)r\ PLAN 4e
—~——\"——  PLAN NUMBER 09/00270/FUL
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 14 September 2009




Page 52

PLAN 5a

h
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

cea

fecand

14 September 2009

PLAN NUMBER 09/00340/HBCCOU

e College Halton

Secandary)

|

El Sub Sta

Leisure Centre

Broseley
House

Leisure Centre

50”0

Vicarage
Victoria Square

4

S———"




Page 53

(\ PLAN 5b
———_"X\"=— pPLAN NUMBER 09/00340/HBCCOL
HALTON

LAYOUT PLAN
BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 14th September 2009
COMMITTEE

SeeNoted  SeeNote 3

A source heat pump

‘
|

| =

‘ 2

1 3
!

.

i :
H |
X F
1
‘
Lol

OLTDOOR COURTYARD/
RECREATION SPACE ..

i New access point for

| pedestrians and vehicies
i

i

i

]

|

H = g s ot s e A sge \
S 1 4
: j | s
! —
: . ! \ r
g 04 2345 10 15 20 2% 30m
{ - 3
E NOTES

1 Meter box to be retained within enclosure to Bike Store

Phase 1. Ramp

2 Tempo for g
o be removed folowtng completion of Phase 1.

3. Temporary position of gates into ball court. Gates 10 be removed following
<ormpletion of Phase 1.

4. Beroal sucfacing 1o continue into interiar of bulkdng at main entiance

5. All gradients of surfacing 10 be fess than 1:20,




Page 54

)r\\’ PLAN 5¢

PLAN NUMBER 09/00340/HBCCOL
HALTON o9/00341/HBCCOU
BOROUGH COUNCIL 49/00342/HBCCAC

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 14th September 2009
COMMITTEE




Page 55

)r\\’ PLAN 5d

PLAN NUMBER 09/00340/HBCCOL
HALTON o9/00341/HBCCOU
BOROUGH COUNCIL 49/00342/HBCCAC

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 14th September 2009
COMMITTEE




Page 56 Agenda ltem 4

REPORT TO: Development Control Committee
DATE: 14™ September 2009
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director - Environment

SUBJECT: Matter relating to adjoining authority consultation.

PLAN NUMBER: 09/00357/ADJ

APPLICANT: Mr J Backhouse, Fairbank Farm, Sandy Lane, Antrobus,
Northwich

PROPOSAL: Adjoining Authority Consultation by Cheshire West and
Cheshire regarding an application for removal of condition No.1 of planning
permission 07-0320-COU (our ref (07/00123/ADJ)

ADDRESS OF SITE: Fairbank Farm, Sandy Lane, Antrobus, Northwich.

WARD: N/A

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION:

No Objection.

CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION: N/A
SITE/LOCATION:

Agricultural Land at Fairbank Farm, Antrobus, Northwich.
RELEVANT HISTORY: N/A

UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN DESIGNATION, KEY POLICIES AND
SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES:

N/A

OBSERVATIONS AND ISSUES

This is an adjoining authority consultation by Cheshire West and Chester
Council on an application to vary a condition of a previous planning

permission to extend the temporary trial period of one year for the
development by one further year.



Page 57

Planning permission was approved for the change of use of agricultural land
to an airstrip for light aircraft at Antrobus, Northwich by inspector at appeal.
The permission was approved subject to conditions including a temporary
permission of 1 year to allow appropriate noise and impact assessment and
subsequent resubmission. That temporary permission expired on 31 July
2009 but due to reported delays in seeking agreement and approval for other
elements of the scheme subject to condition the use has not commenced to
allow appropriate assessment. Permission is therefore sought to extend the
temporary period for a further 12 months. The proposal is a significant
distance from the Borough boundary and, whilst no control can be achieved
over flight patterns, the proposals are not considered to have significant
adverse effects on the Borough or its residents in land use terms. As such it is
considered that no objections are raised.

RECOMMENDATION:

That Cheshire West and Cheshire be informed that Halton Borough Council
raises no objections.



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE
	DC Amendments 14 September 2009
	0900340HBCCOUe
	0900224COUa
	0900224COUb
	0900224COUc
	0900245OUTa
	0900245OUTb
	0900245OUTc
	0900245OUTd
	0900269FULa
	0900269FULb
	0900269FULc
	0900270FULa
	0900270FULb
	0900270FULc
	0900270FULd
	0900270FULe
	0900340HBCCOUa
	0900340HBCCOUb
	0900340HBCCOUc
	0900340HBCCOUd

	4 Adjoining Authority Consultation

